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PER CURI AM *

Jesus Manuel Acosta-Avitia appeals fromthe sentence inposed
followng his guilty-plea conviction for illegal re-entry, in
violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1326.

Acosta argues that the district court erred when it
classified Acosta’ s prior conviction as a drug-trafficking
of fense that warranted a 16-1evel offense |evel enhancenent under

US S G 8 2L1.2(b)(1)(A (2003); that under Apprendi Vv. New

Jersey, 530 U S. 466 (2000), his inprisonnent termviolated due

" Pursuant to 5THOR R 47.5, the court has determ ned that
this opi nion should not be published and is not precedent except
under the limted circunstances set forth in 5THCQR R 47.5. 4.
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process because it exceeded the statutory maxi num for the charged

of fense; that under United States v. Booker, 125 S. &. 738

(2005), the district court plainly erred by increasing the

maxi mum aut hori zed Cui del i nes sentence based on facts neither

admtted by himnor found by a jury beyond a reasonabl e doubt;

and that under Booker, the district court plainly erred when it

sentenced hi munder a nmandatory Cui delines sentencing schene.
Because Acosta preserved his objection to the enhancenent

before the district court, this court reviews the enhancenent de

novo. United States v. Calderon-Pena, 383 F.3d 254, 256 (5th

Cir. 2004) (en banc), cert. denied, 125 S. C. 932 (2005).

In 1988 Acosta was convicted of violating Cal. Health and
Safety Code 8 11360(a) (West 1988). This 1988 conviction forns
the basis for the district court’s U S.S.G § 2L1.2(b)(1)(A
enhancenent. The | anguage of the California Health and Safety
Code section that Acosta violated is broader than the definition
of “drug trafficking conviction” set forth in the CGuidelines and
t hus reaches conduct that nmay not fit the definition of a drug
trafficking conviction. Conpare Cal. Health and Safety Code
§ 11360(a) (West 1988), with U.S.S.G § 2L1.2(b)(1)(A (i),
coment. (n.1(B)(iv)).

Al t hough the probation departnent in the Presentence Report
(PSR) set forth facts fromwhich the probation depart nment
concluded that the offense was a drug trafficking offense that

warranted the enhancenent, the “district court was not permtted
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to rely on the PSR s characterization of the offense in order to
make its determ nation of whether it was a drug trafficking

offense.” See United States v. Garza-Lopez, 410 F.3d 268, 273-74

(5th Gr. 2005).
Addi tionally, under the analysis set forth in this court’s

recent decision of United States v. @Qutierrez-Ramrez, 405 F. 3d

352 (2005), the docunents submtted by the Governnent do not
provide the requisite information. Neither the indictnment nor
the judgnent relating to Acosta’s 1988 conviction was provided to
the district court. None of the docunents submtted by the
Governnent are the product of judicial function, such as a
judgnent, that “manifests a conscious judicial narrowi ng of the
char gi ng docunent rather than a shorthand abbreviation of the
statute of conviction.” See id. at 357-58 (internal quotation
marks omtted). The docunents also are not “‘explicit factual
findings by the trial judge to which the defendant assented.’”

Id. at 359, quoting Shepard v. United States, 125 S. C. 1254,

1257 (2005).

At nost, the docunents submtted by the Governnent cite the
statute and state that Acosta’ s crine was “sale of marijuana.”
This type of citation and shorthand reference to the statute of
convi ction, which enconpasses a broader range of conduct than a
drug trafficking conviction as defined in U S. S G
8§ 2L1.2(b)(1)(A), is insufficient to support the enhancenent.

See Gutierrez-Ramrez, 405 F.3d at 355, 358-59. Finally, nothing
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in the record suggests that the docunents submtted by the
Governnent in Acosta’ s case are any nore reliable than the

California abstract of judgnent that in GQutierrez-Ramrez, 405

F.3d at 358, was found to have a “low level of reliability.”
Thus, the district court erred in inposing the 16-1evel
enhancenent .

Acosta also contends that 8 U S.C. 8 1326(b)(1) and (2),
whi ch provide that a defendant’s sentence may be increased for a
prior “felony” or “aggravated felony,” are unconstitutional in

light of Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U S. 466 (2000). As Acosta

recogni zes, this issue is controlled by Al nendarez-Torres v.

United States, 523 U S. 224, 235 (1998). Apprendi did not

overrul e Al nendar ez-Torres. See Apprendi, 530 U S. at 489-90;

see also United States v. Dabeit, 231 F.3d 979, 984 (5th G

2000). This court does not have the authority to overrule

Al nendarez-Torres. See Dabeit, 231 F.3d at 984. This argunent

is therefore forecl osed.

Finally, because this court is vacating Acosta s sentence
due to a msapplication of the then-mandatory Quidelines, it is
not necessary to address Acosta’ a Booker clains. See Garza-

Lopez, 410 F.3d 268, 275 n.2; United States v. Southerland, 405

F.3d 263, 270 (5th Cr. 2005).
W therefore VACATE Acosta’s sentence and REMAND f or
resentencing consistent wwth this opinion and the Suprene Court’s

opi ni on i n Booker.



